

University of North Dakota UND Scholarly Commons

University Senate Meeting Minutes

UND Publications

4-3-2014

April 3, 2014

University of North Dakota

How does access to this work benefit you? Let us know!

Follow this and additional works at: https://commons.und.edu/und-senate-minutes

Recommended Citation

University of North Dakota. "April 3, 2014" (2014). *University Senate Meeting Minutes*. 480. https://commons.und.edu/und-senate-minutes/480

This Minutes is brought to you for free and open access by the UND Publications at UND Scholarly Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in University Senate Meeting Minutes by an authorized administrator of UND Scholarly Commons. For more information, please contact und.commons@library.und.edu.

Minutes of the University Senate Meeting April 3, 2014

1.

The April meeting of the University Senate was held at 4:05 p.m. on Thursday, April 3, 2014 in Room 113, Education. Chair Ryan Zerr presided.

2.

The following members of the Senate were present:

Anderson, Ernest Anderson, Suzanne Antonova, Slavka Baker, Mary Brekke, Alice Casler, James Cherry, Emily Creamer, Nick Dewar, Graeme DiLorenzo, Thomas Elbert, Dennis Ernst, Julia Fazel-Rezai, Reza Gedafa, Daba Gjellstad, Melissa Hanson, Lexi Hillebrand, Diane

Hume, Wendelin
Jeno, Sue
Johnson, Brett
Keeley, Kim
Kelley, Robert
Khavanin, Mohammad
Kurtz, Sharley
Laguette, Soizik
Marasinghe, Kanishka
Masko, Meganne
Maury, Debra
McGinniss, Michael
McHenry, Laurie
Munski, Doug
Noghanian, Sima
Oberg, Alan
Petros, Thomas

Poochigian, Donald Porter, Kim Rakow, Lana Rami, Manish Ray, Linda Reesor, Lori Schultz, Kasey Shafer, Richard Smart, Kathy Storrs, Debbie Sturges, Denyse Suleiman, Nabil Thorson, Kyle Towne, Gary Urlacher, Brian Walton, Susan Zerr, Ryan

3.

The following members of the Senate were absent:

Barkdull, Carenlee
Berg, Kate
Campbell, Katherine
Combs, Barbara
De Long, Loretta
Dennis, Steven
Doze, Van
El-Rewini, Hesham
Geiger, Jonathan
Halgren, Cara
Harsell, Dana
Hill, Robert

Jackson, Jon
Johnson, Phyllis
Kalka, Joseph
Keengwe, Jared
Kuntz, Susan
Lawrence, Shaina
Lemire, Steve
Light, Steven
Mikulak, Marcia
Mitzell, John
Rand, Kathryn
Reissig, Brad

Rice, Dan
Smith, Bruce
Stolt, Wilbur
Stone, Jan
Sum, Paul
Swisher, Wayne
Walker, Anne
Weber, Brett
Worley, Paul
Wynne, Joshua
Young, Tim

4.

The following announcements were made:

Ar. Zerr called on three vice presidents to update the senators on the Pathways to Student Success. Mr. DiLorenzo, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs, first described the status of various pieces of Pathways here at UND. Ms. Reesor, Vice President for Student Affairs, talked about the admissions formula for domestic freshmen. She indicated that UND has permission to continue with our current standards for the 2015 class. The current standard is a minimum 2.5 GPA and 21 ACT. Students who do not meet the standards are reviewed individually using the holistic approach. In developing the proposed standards for 2016, research shows that high school GPA is the best predictor of success and UND is working with NDSU to establish new standards for the research institutions, ideally based on

GPA. There is an Admissions Task Force which includes representatives from CCF, NDSA and the campuses. Currently, UND is considering two proposals: one based on GPA and one looking at increasing core. There will be three tiers for the admissions standards. The timeline for the proposal is a review by AAC/SAC in May and to the State Board of Higher Education for its July retreat. Ms. Reesor mentioned that there will be a priority admissions deadline and an admission deposit for students in 2015. She also indicated that more will be known by May. Mr. DiLorenzo stated that we will use student success and continually adjust the admission criteria as data indicate. Mr. DiLorenzo spoke about remedial/developmental education. He reminded the senators that Pathways first indicated that all developmental education would happen at the community college, but the literature shows that developmental education is not effective. Now, there is a proposal where community college faculty will work with high schools and their teachers to prepare the students to be college ready; additionally, proposals from institutions were welcomed. UND proposals were provided by the English and Math departments. The English proposal was to place all students into English 110 regardless of ACT. The Math department proposal included continued use of the COMPASS exam, a five-day Math 103 class and continued offering of Math 102. The two proposals were based on department experience and data. The System approved the two proposals for this next year, 2014. Ms. Brekke, Vice President for Finance and Operations, spoke regarding a new tuition model. She indicated that UND has been preparing and discussing a new model for many years. A work group worked for several years studying changes and impact on UND. With Pathways, a new tuition model was part of the plan. UND and NDSU have been working on a common model. Discussion was beyond an identical rate structure for the two institutions to a common approach. SBHE wants to make an announcement on the new model in fall 2014 to be implemented in fall 2015. Discussion items for the new model include: per-credit tuition capped at 15 credits; blending the non-mandatory fees (course fees) into tuition; on-campus versus online tuition rates - can we create a model where all credits are equal; how residency is considered with residency rate differentials and how we streamline program differential tuition for certain programs but no program fees. There is a framework that is now being reviewed at the system. The next step is to meet by tiers with the system office. As of now, there is nothing set. There is also consideration of undergraduate versus graduate tuitions and the tuition waivers but those conversations have not yet even started. Questions were taken.

- b. Mr. Zerr presented the Senate Committee election results. The results will be included with the minutes.
- c. Mr. Zerr announced that SEC is reforming the Ad Hoc Student Evaluation of Teaching Committee (USAT). The term of the earlier committee to review the USAT process has expired.
- d. The Council of College Faculties statement on open resource materials was presented. Mr. Petros made a motion to place the matter on the business calendar. Mr. Munski seconded, and the motion was approved.
- e. The Intellectual Property Committee is providing input to NDUS regarding the NDUS IP policy 611.2
- f. The Spring University Council meeting is scheduled for 3:00 p.m., April 30, in Education, Room 7.
- g. A CCF All-Faculty Conference is tentatively planned for October 2014. A survey will be distributed to all faculty requesting agenda topics and if there is interest in a conference. This is a planning survey to determine whether to move forward. The expectation is that it will be held in Grand Forks.

Mr. Zerr called attention to the minutes of the March 6, 2014 meeting. There were no additions or corrections to the minutes. There was a motion of approval by Mr. Munski. Mr. Gedafa seconded and the minutes were approved as distributed.

6.

The question period was opened at 5:05 p.m. There were no questions.

7.

Mr. Zerr called attention to the annual report from the Intercollegiate Athletics Committee. A motion was made by Ms. Smart to accept and file the reports. There was a second by Ms. Jeno and the motion was approved.

8.

The Curriculum Committee report was reviewed. There was a motion to approve the report by Mr. Petros and a second was made. Discussion ensued. Mr. DiLorenzo responded to a question that there are not currently criteria for establishing a school but that it would be good to develop. A vote was taken and the motion was approved.

9.

Mr. Oberg made a motion to extend the meeting until 6:00 p.m. Mr. Dewar seconded and the motion was approved.

10.

The Conflict of Interest Policy was reviewed. David Bradley, Chair of the Senate Intellectual Property Committee described the changes. David Schmidt, Assistant Vice President for Research and Economic Development, explained that the changes were federally mandated. There was a motion to approve by Mr. Munski and a second by Ms. Hillebrand. The motion was approved.

11.

The Council of College Faculties draft statement on open resources was presented with a request for endorsement. Mr. Munski moved approval of the statement as written. Ms. Smart seconded the motion. Discussion ensued. A vote was taken and the motion was approved.

12.

The meeting adjourned at 5:26 p.m.

Suzanne Anderson, Secretary to the Senate

Nominees Elected to Senate Committees Election Results - April 2014

CONTINUING	TERM EXPIRE		TERM	
COMMITTEE MEMBERS	(FALL		EXPIRES	VOTE
1. Academic Policies & Admissions		Elect 2 until 2017		
M. Cavalli (CEM)) 2015	Loretta DeLong	2017	
W. Hume (A&S)	2016		2017	
J. Jedlicka (MED) 2016		2017	X
		Aaron Kennedy	2017	
		Karen Peterson	2017	
		Sarah Mosher	2017	X
2. Administrative Procedures		Elect 2 until 2016		
				2010
K. Ruit (MED)	2015		2016	$\frac{X}{X}$
D. Munski (A&S)			2016	X
K. Porter (A&S)	2015		2016	
		Eric Sand	2016	
3. Budget, Restructuring and Reall	ocation	Elect 2 until 2017		
o. Baaget, Nestractaring and Near	ocation	Liect 2 dittii 2017		
M. Askim-Lovset	th (BPA) 2015	Travis Desell	2017	
B. Myers (LAW)	2015		2017	
M. Healy (EHD)	2016		2017	
G. Dewar (A&S)	2016	Susan Nelson	2017	X
		Jeremiah Neubert	2017	
		Michelle Sauer	2017	
		Tom Steen	2017	X
4. Compensation		Elect 3 until 2017 (all Tenured)		
L Poy (MED) (N	IT) 2015	Jamas Hissias	2047	
L. Ray (MED) (N T. Hill (MED) (T)			2017 2017	()
P. Worley (A&S)			— 2017 2017	
1. Wolley (Ado)	(11) 2010	Jeffrey Sun	— 2017 2017	$\frac{\hat{x}}{x}$
		David Whalen	— 2017 2017	$\frac{\hat{x}}{x}$
		David Villaicii		
5. Conflict of Interest/Scientific Mis	conduct	Elect 3 until 2017 (1 MED, 1 A&S-	natural/social	sciences
J. Stone (LIBR)	2015	April Bradley (A&S soc sci)	2017	Х
J. Anderson (NU			2017	$\frac{x}{x}$
P. Harmeson (B			— 2017 2017	
S. Laguette (JD0			2017	
L. Stanlake (CEI			2017	
M. Short (EĤD)	2016		2017	
S. Braun (A&S-h			2017	X
81	•	Brij Singh (Med)	2017	
		Phoebe Stubblefield (A&S soc sci)	2017	

	CONTINUING	TERM EXPIRES		TERM	
COMMITTEE	MEMBERS	FALL OF	NOMINEES	EXPIRES	VOTE
6. Continuing Ed	lucation		Elect 2 until 2017		
	D. Todhuntov (A 9 C)	2045	Larotto Dollana	2017	V
	P. Todhunter (A&S) J. Ralph (NUR)	2015 2015	Loretta DeLong Paul Drechsel	— 2017 2017	<u>X</u>
	B. Combs (EHD)	2016	Richard Fiordo	- 2017 2017	
	G. Vandeberg (A&S)	2016	Victor Lieberman	— 2017 2017	
	G. Vandeberg (Add)	2010	Laurie McHenry	- ²⁰¹⁷	
			Claudia Routon		-
			Sonia Zimmerman	— 2017	
7. Curriculum			Elect 2 until 2017 (1 BPA, 1 CEM)		
	L. Martin (JDO)	2015	James Haskins (BPA)	2017	X
	S. Fleshman (A&S)	2015	Hadi Jabbari (CEM)		
	M. Baker (EHD)	2016	Jeremiah Neubert (CEM)	2017	
	R. Hurley (NUR)	2016	Sima Noghanian (CEM)	— 2017	X
	S. Kuntz (MED)	2016	Clement Tang (CEM)		
8. Essential Stud	dia		Floor 4 10047 (4 FUD 4 A00 I		2 4 4 13 4
o. Esserillai Siud	lies		Elect 4 until 2017 (1 EHD, 1 A&S-h	iumanities & 2	Z ANY)
	G. Rotvold (BPA)	2015	Elizabeth Bjerke (JDO)	2017	X
	D. Hanson (NUR)	2015	April Bradley (A&S soc sci)		X
	M. Hill (JDO)	2015	Mary Drewes (CFL)		
	K. Minnotte (A&S-social science	2015	Tanis Hastmann (EHD)		<u> </u>
	E. Rheude (A&S-fine arts)	2016	Charles Miller (A&S hum)	2017	
	C. Moretti (CEM)	2016	Karen Peterson (MED)	2017	
	J. Carmichael (A&S-sciences)	2016	Timothy Prescott (A&S nat sc)	2017	
	J. Jackson (MED)	2016	Lori Robison (A&S hum)	2017	X
9. Faculty Handb	oook		Elect 1 until 2017 (Tenured)		
	S. Mosher (A&S) (TT)	2015	John B. Bridewell	2017	
	P. Sum (BPA) (T)	2016	Paul Drechsel	2017	
	T. Prescott (Á&S) (NT)	2016	David Lawrence	2017	X
10. Faculty Instr	ructional Development		Elect 2 until 2017		
	•				
	J. liams (A&S)	2015	Matthew Cavalli	2017	X
	L. Rakow (A&S)	2015	Kari Chiasson	2017	
	J. Ernst (LAW)	2016	Daba Gedafa	2017	
	W. Seames (CEM)	2016	Jon Jackson	2017	X
			Charles Miller	2017	
			Krista Lynn Minnotte	2017	si si
			Claudia Routon	2017	
			Elizabeth Scharf	2017	
			Brij Singh	2017	
			Pauline Stonehouse		
			Rob Stupnisky		
			Clement Tang Sonia Zimmerman	— 2017 — 2017	-
			Sonia Zimmerman	2017	
11. Honorary De	egrees		Elect 1 until 2019 (College membe		-
	K. Kenville (JDO)	2015	only from BPA, LAW, MED or NU Eric Sand (MED)	2019	
	D. Gedafa (CEM)	2015	Janna Schill (MED)		X
	D. Worley (EHD)	2010	Brij Singh (MED)	— 2019 2019	
	R. Shafer (A&S)	2018	Sonia Zimmerman (MED)	— 2019 2019	
	()	_5.0	Toma Eminorman (MED)		

	CONTINUING	TERM		TEDM	
COMMITTEE	CONTINUING MEMBERS	EXPIRES FALL OF	NOMINEES	TERM EXPIRES	VOTE
12. Honors	WEWDERG	TALLO	Elect 3 until 2017	LXI IIILO	VOIL
A					
	K. Porter (A&S)	2015	Colleen Berry	_ 2017	X
	P. Meberg (A&S)	2015	April Bradley	2017	
	K. Sukalski (MED)	2015	Alycia Cummings	2017	
	J. Vacek (JDO)	2016	Sherrie Fleshman	_ 2017	
	A. Boyd (A&S)	2016	Debra Maury	_ 2017	X
	T. Steen (EHD)	2016	Peter Meberg	_ 2017	
			Lucian Stone Burt Thorp	- 2017 2017	
-24.1					
13. Intellectual	Property		Elect 1 until 2017		
	M. Askelson (JDO)	2015	Colin Combs	2017	
	M. Gilmore (JDO)	2015	Travis Desell	2017	
	S. Gupta (CEM)	2016	James Higgins	2017	
	(,		Naima Kaabouch	2017	
			Eric Murphy	2017	X
			Sandy Wells	2017	
14. Intercollegia	oto Athlotica		Elect 3 until 2017		
14. Intercollegia	ate Athletics		Elect 3 until 2017		
	J. Vitton (BPA)	2015	Ali Angelone	2017	
	B. Rundquist (A&S)	2015	Alycia Cummings	2017	X
	M. Meyer (A&S)	2015	Richard Fiordo	2017	
	S. Short (EHD)	2016	Tanis Hastmann	2017	X
	J. Neubert (CEM)	2016	James Higgins	2017	
	R. Millspaugh (A&S)	2016	Eric Murphy	2017	-
			Susan Nelson	2017	
			Janna Schill	2017	X
15. Legislative	Affairs		Elect 1 until 2017		
	A. Berger (A&S)	2015	Loretta DeLong	_ 2017	
	J. Ernst (LAW)	2016	Brett Webber	_ 2017	
	D. Darland (A&S)	2017	Dana Harsell	_ 2017	X
16. Library			Elect 3 until 2017 (1 EHD, 1 BPA & 1	JDO)	
	C Lai (MED)	0045			
	S. Lei (MED)	2015	Elizabeth Bjerke (JDO)	_ 2017	X
	K. Donehower-Weinstein(A&S)	2015	Kenneth Foltz (JDO)	2017	
	J. Stone (LIBR)	2015	James Haskins (BPA)	2017	X
	S. Noghanian (CEM)	2016	Grace Onchwari (EHD)	2017	X
	A. Sahmoun (MED) D. Tande (NUR)	2016 2016	David Whalen (JDO)	_ 2017	
-					
17. ROTC			Elect 2 until 2017		
	T. Rosenberger (MED)	2015	Albert Berger	2017	Χ
	R. Nedegaard (NUR)	2015	James Casler	2017	
	B. Urlacher (BPA)	2016	Kenneth Foltz	2017	
	A. Shackelford (A&S)	2016	David Whalen	2017	<u>X</u>

COMMITTEE 18. Scholarly Acti	CONTINUING MEMBERS ivities	TERM EXPIRES FALL OF	NOMINEES Elect 3 until 2017 (1 CEM, 1 JDO & 1	TERM EXPIRES LAW)	VOTE
	B. Lesch (BPA) S. Kuntz (MED) M. Weaver-Hightower (EHD) J. Ralph (NUR) A. Looby (A&S-social science) W. Smith (A&S-fine arts)	2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016	James Casler (JDO) Travis Desell (JDO) Yeo Howe Lim (CEM) Michael McGinniss (LAW) Sima Noghanian (CEM)	2017 2017 2017 2017 2017	X X X
19. Student Acad	lemic Standards		Elect 2 until 2017		
	T. Prescott (A&S) S. Edwards (EHD) M. Flynn (A&S) V. McCleary (MED)	2015 2015 2016 2016	Ali Angelone Colleen Berry Sherrie Fleshman Kim Kenville Sima Noghanian Janna Schill	2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017	X
20. Student Policy	/		Elect 2 until 2017		
	V. Lieberman (LIBR) A. Seddoh (A&S) S. Meyers (MED)	2015 2016 2016	Ali Angelone Colleen Berry Eugene DeLorme David Lawrence Eric Sand	2017 2017 2017 2017 2017	X
21. Summer Sess	sion		Elect 2 until 2017		
	D. Munski (A&S) D. Hollingworth (BPA) L. Peterson (A&S) R. Ferraro (A&S)	2015 2015 2016 2016	Abdallah Badahdah Elizabeth Bjerke Michele liams Grace Onchwari	2017 2017 2017 2017	X
22. University As	sessment		Elect 2 until 2017 (1 CEM & 1 JDO)		
	K. Ruit (MED) D. Worley (EHD) M. Askim-Lovseth (BPA) D. Hansen (A&S) B. Myers (LAW) K. Buettner (NUR)	2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016	James Casler (JDO) Surojit Gupta (CEM)	2017 2017	X



University of North Dakota

To:

Ryan Zerr - Chair of University Senate Committee

From:

Mark Dusenbury - Chair of Intercollegiate Athletics Committee

CC:

Suzanne Anderson - Registrar

Date:

3/20/2014

Re:

Intercollegiate Athletics Committee Annual Report

Committee Members:

Brad Rundquist Alycia Cummings

Richard Millspaugh Jeremiah Neubert Alison Allmer Sue Jeno Mike Meyer Katie Houdek Eric Oakley Will Gosnold

John Vitton

Mark Dusenbury - Chair

Meeting Schedule:

12/10/13 - Committee Meeting

- Election of new chair.
- Review charge of committee and sub-committee's according to the charter.
- Athletics update –Brian Faison
- Coaching searches Daniella Irle
- Sue Jeno Faculty Athletics Representative (FAR) update

1/21/14 – Committee Meeting

- Subcommittee updates
- Athletics department update Daniella Irle

Subcommittee Meetings:

Equity and Diversity - 2/11/14

Governance and Compliance - 2/24/14

Academic Integrity and Student-Athlete Well-Being - 3/24/14

University Senate Curriculum Committee Report April 3, 2014

1 Title Changes - Department, Major, & Minor

> "Department of Entrepreneurship" to" School of Entrepreneurship"

II Program Deactivation

> OSEH-BS: BS in Occupational Safety & Environmental Health

III New Courses

- > EFR 995: Scholarly Project
- > ENGR 206: Fundamentals of Electrical Engineering

IV Course Deletions

- NURS 402: Complex Adult Health Theory
- GEOG 541: Seminar in Geography

Senate approval is not required for the following report items

V Program Changes

- General Nursing
 - Deletion of General Nursing option
- > MGMT-BBA: BBA with Major in Management
 - Change in required cumulative and institutional grade point average (GPA) to 2.75.
- ➤ EE-BS-AE Focus: BS in Electrical Engineering with Aerospace Focus
 - Add Grade of "C" or better in all EE courses required for graduation.
- EE-BS-BE Focus: BS in Electrical Engineering with Biomedical Engineering Focus
 - Add Grade of "C" or better in all EE courses required for graduation.
- ➤ EE-BS-CS Focus : BS in Electrical Engineering with Computer Science Focus
 - Add Grade of "C" or better in all EE courses required for graduation.
- EE-BS : BS in Electrical Engineering
 - Add Grade of "C" or better in all EE courses required for graduation.
- > KIN-MinorHE : Minor in Health Education
 - Add new PHE courses
 - Remove BIOL 124, GEOL 130, PSYC 999, T&L 252, and SOC 335.

VI Course Changes: Undergraduate

- > CHEM 115L: Introductory to Chemistry Lab
 - Title change to: introductory to Chemistry Laboratory
- > CJ 201: Introduction to Criminal Justice
 - Terms offered: from Fall to Fall and Spring
- ➤ BIOL 341L:Cell Biology Lab
 - Remove CHEM 121 as a prerequisite or corequisite.

UNIVERSITY of NORTH DAKOTA RESEARCH AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICY LIBRARY

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Section 1, Research

Policy 8, Conflict of Interest

Responsible Office: Office of the Vice President for Research and Economic

Development

Responsible Executive: Vice President for Research and Economic Development

Issued: XX/XX/XXXX

Latest Review / Revision: XX/XX/XXXX



POLICY STATEMENT

Outside activities advance and communicate knowledge through interaction with government, industry, the community, and the public. This policy establishes a University policy for implementing State Board of Higher Education (SBHE) personnel policies regarding financial and resource conflict of interest and outside employment or service. This policy will allow faculty, staff and students at the University to identify and manage any conflicts between their interests and the interests of the University. For ethical conduct issues, see the Ethical Conduct in Research, Scholarship, and Creative Activity Policy.

This policy provides a guiding framework for all Employees for the identification, disclosure, management, and monitoring of non-University activities that is in accordance with federal regulations, state law, SBHE policies, and University policies. This document defines the nature of conflicts of interest, provides principles that guide identification and disclosure of such conflicts, identifies the responsibilities of all parties involved, defines disclosure procedures, and provides a structure for enforcement.

As a service to the University community, and in a manner consistent with the University's obligations under state and federal law and SBHE policies, the University will make appropriate training in Conflict of Interest available to Employees on a regular basis. Employees should be aware that documented completion of such training may be a prerequisite for application, award and use of certain funding.

REASON FOR POLICY

A policy is necessary to comply with federal requirements.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Eight principles guide the identification, disclosure, review, and management of real or potential conflicts of interest. The principles are not intended as a set of rigid rules, rather they represent an attempt to define a set of parameters by which conflict of interest situations can be managed.

Principle 1: Commitment to the University

All employees are expected to fulfill their professional commitment to the University in good faith.

Principle 2: Honesty in Disclosure and Management

All employees are expected to provide honest, thorough, and thoughtful disclosure and management of any conflict of interest.

Principle 3: Equitable Review and Management

The University strives toward equitable review and management of non-University activities and commitments of all Employees, balancing the interests of the University with the interests of the individual Employee, while maintaining the integrity of both. To this end, the University is expected to provide a fair and unbiased review of conflict of interest disclosures and a means of collaborative management of conflicts.

Principle 4: Confidentiality

The University is subject to the North Dakota Open Records Law; however, to the extent allowed by state and federal law, the University will maintain a commitment of confidentiality in conflict of interest disclosures.

Principle 5: Integrity in Scholarly Behavior

Non-University commitments and activities must not compromise scholarly integrity.

Principle 6: Preserving the Reputation and Best Interests of the University

The University respects and upholds the principles of Academic Freedom. Non-University commitments and activities must not undermine, compromise, or misrepresent the scholarly mission, reputation, and/or best interest of the University. It is the responsibility of the Employee to inform external entities of these obligations.

Principle 7: Appropriate Use of University Resources

The University must be adequately compensated for the significant use of University facilities, supplies, equipment, or personnel for non-University commitments and activities. If an Employee wishes to make significant use of University resources for non-University commitments, the Employee must obtain prior written permission from the Executive Head of the Unit for such use.

Principle 8: Public Health Service (PHS) Specific Provisions

The disclosure of certain financial interests and activities as specifically indicated in this policy will be limited to faculty and key personnel applying for and obtaining funding from units of the United States Public Health Service.

SCOPE OF POLICY

This policy applies to all members of the University community and should be read by:

✓ President

✓ Faculty

✓ Vice Presidents

✓ Staff

✓ Deans, Directors & Department Chairs

✓ Students

CONTENTS

Policy Statement	1
Reason for Policy	1
Guiding Principles	1
Scope of Policy	2
Related Information	4
Contacts	4
Definitions	5
Procedures	7
Responsibilities	15
Forms	15
Revision Record	

RELATED INFORMATION

Financial Conflict of Interest	NIH-http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/coi/
Financial Conflict of Interest	NSF-http://www.nsf.gov/pubs/manuals/gpm05_131/gpm5.jsp#510
NIH and NSF are examples, bu	at each agency is expected to have its own Conflict of Interest Policy.

CONTACTS

General questions about this policy can be answered by your department's administrative office. Specific questions should be directed to the following:

Subject	Contact	Telephone	E-Mail / Web Address
Policy Content and Clarification	Research Development and Compliance	777-4278	http://und.edu/research/resources/index/

DEFINITIONS

Appropriate Vice President

The Appropriate Vice President generally is the University official holding a position of Vice President who has administrative authority for the unit for which an Employee works the majority of the time. In all situations where an Employee is compensated from or has spending authority over funds derived from extramural funding, the Appropriate Vice President will be the Vice President for Research and Economic Development.

Conflict of Interest

A Conflict of Interest occurs when an Employee is involved in an activity, commitment, or interest that could adversely affect, compromise, or be incompatible with the obligations of the Employee to the University. A Conflict of Interest can involve conflicts of time commitment, research integrity, financial interest, use of university resources, or discipline-specific interests.

- A conflict of time commitment occurs when an Employee is involved in and committed to unauthorized non-university activities that interfere with obligations to students, colleagues, and the primary mission of the University.
- 2. A conflict of research integrity occurs when an Employee has an obligation to an external entity that is in conflict with the Employee's research obligations to the University, or that restricts or impairs the Employee's ability to perform research or other activities at the University. For more details, see the document: Ethical Conduct in Research, Scholarship and Creative Activity in the UND Faculty Handbook.
- A conflict of financial interest occurs when an Employee influences the University in such a way as to lead to a significant direct or indirect financial gain for the Employee or any member of the Employee's close family (spouse and/or dependent children).
- 4. A conflict in the use of university resources occurs when an Employee uses university resources in the unauthorized conduct of non-University activities such that a reasonable person could conclude that the activity is undertaken by the Employee in an official University capacity, or that the activity has University sponsorship or authorization.
- 5. A conflict of discipline-specific interests occurs when the nature of the Employee's discipline, department or Employee obligations could cause situations that, while not implicating one of the conflicts listed above, could cause risk to the University. The Executive Head of the Unit is expected to provide written guidance to Employees regarding these situations and the Employees' obligations to disclose them.

Conflict of Interest Committee

The Conflict of Interest/Scientific Misconduct Committee ("Conflict of Interest Committee") is charged by the University Senate to develop and implement the Conflict of Interest policy. Its membership, responsibilities and functions will be determined by the University Senate. Administrative services will be provided by the office of

the Vice President for Research and Economic Development. The Conflict of Interest Committee will serve in an advisory capacity to the Appropriate Vice Presidents or their designees regarding conflict of interest issues, as defined in this Conflict of Interest Policy.

Committee of Investigation

Three-member panel used in an appeal.

Disclosable Interest

Employees have numerous interests, only some of which could result in a Conflict of Interest. The intent of this Conflict of Interest Policy is to identify Employee interests that could conflict with the interests of the University and to manage those conflicts whenever possible. The University is not interested in collecting confidential or personal information that is not necessary for the identification and management of Conflicts of Interests. The general rule is that each Employee must disclose anything that could reasonably be interpreted as creating a Conflict of Interest. Some interests must be disclosed regardless of whether an Employee believes that such interest could reasonably be interpreted as creating a Conflict of Interest. These interests are listed below.

- 1. If an Employee *a*) can influence or approve purchase of goods or services worth more than \$10,000 per year in his/her university role, or *b*) is responsible for the design, conduct, or reporting of research supported by federal agencies, then the Employee must disclose any significant financial interest in a non-University entity.
- 2. An Employee who is a member of the faculty must disclose outside, compensated or voluntary, professional/commercial activities, including consulting or management of an outside business, if he/she spent more than 20% of his or her total work effort on such activity during the immediate past contract period or expects to do so during the next contract period. See consulting practices in the Faculty Handbook, III-5.2. All other full time Employees must disclose any outside, compensated or voluntary, professional/commercial activities, including consulting for an outside business, if he/she has or expects to spend any effort on such activity during normal work hours at the University.
- An Employee must disclose the use of significant University resources (including faculty, students, support staff, facilities, equipment, or confidential information) in carrying out any outside, compensated or voluntary, professional/commercial activities.
- 4. An Employee must disclose service as principal or co-principal investigator for sponsored projects submitted and managed through other academic, federal, or commercial institutions, excluding subcontracts awarded to the University of North Dakota and/or multi-site training or research projects.
- An Employee must disclose service as a manager of an outside business activity in his/her professional field.
- 6. An Employee must disclose use of University resources to create, discover, or reduce to practice, patentable inventions which have not been disclosed to the University.

Employees

Employees, for the purposes of this Conflict of Interest policy only, are all persons who are participating in official University-sponsored activities on a full-time, part-time, or contract basis. It also includes graduate students who hold research, service, or teaching appointments.

Executive Head of a Unit

The Executive Head of a Unit means a Dean or his/her designee for an academic unit and Director or Unit Head or his/her designee for a non-academic unit. If a conflict exists for the Executive Head of the Unit, the matter will be referred to the next level of administrative authority in the normal reporting lines.

Fiscal Year

The University's fiscal year is July 1st through June 30th.

Inquiry

Inquiry means information gathering and fact-finding to determine whether a Conflict of Interest exists when a Report of Potential Conflict has been made.

Non-Publicly Traded Entity

A "privately held company" in which the entity is owned by private investors where there are no requirements to disclose financial information since they do not trade stock on an open stock exchange or over-the-counter.

Office of Record

The Office of Record is the office of the Vice President for Research and Economic Development. In addition to all documents required to be sent to the Office of Record by this Conflict of Interest Policy, the Office of Record will house the minutes and any other documents produced by the Conflict of Interest Committee, except the annual report. The Office of Record will retain all documents forwarded to it under this Conflict of Interest Policy for a period consistent with the University's records retention schedule.

Publicly Traded Entity

A company issuing stocks, which are traded on the open market either on a stock exchange or on the over-the-counter market, and is usually subject to Securities and Exchange Commission filing and reporting requirements.

Report of Potential Conflict

A Report of Potential Conflict is the written information delivered to an Appropriate Vice President indicating that an Employee may have a Conflict of Interest.

Significant Financial Interest

The term *significant financial interest* means anything of monetary value, including, but not limited to: salary or other payments for services (*e.g.*, consulting fees, honoraria); equity interests (*e.g.*, stocks, stock options, patents, copyrights, other ownership interests); and non-University royalties from intellectual property rights (*e.g.*, patents, copyrights, trade secrets, and trademarks).

The term does NOT include:

- Any salary, royalties or other remuneration paid by the University to the Employee and the Employee's spouse and/or dependent children;
- b) An interest in any **publicly traded entity** with a value of \$5,000 or less. The value of the interests is determined by aggregating the value of any remuneration received by the Employee, the Employee's spouse, and dependent children from the entity in the twelve months preceding disclosure with the value of any equity interest in the entity. In other words, if the combination of the remuneration you receive from the entity and the value of any interest you own in the entity exceeds \$5,000, you must disclose it. Any equity interest held by the Employee, the Employee's spouse, and dependent children through an investment vehicle such as a mutual fund or retirement account will not be considered an equity interest for purposes of this section unless the Employee, the Employee's spouse, and dependent children controls investments decisions by the investment vehicle;
- c) With regard to any non-publicly traded entity: remuneration received by the Employee, the Employee's spouse, and dependent children during the twelve months preceding the disclosure in excess of \$5,000; or the ownership of any equity interest in the entity. In other words, if the remuneration your receive from the entity exceeds \$5,000 or you own any interest in the entity, regardless of whether it has any value, you must disclose it;
- d) The ownership of any intellectual property rights and interests (e.g., patents and copyrights), but only so long as the Employee, the Employee's spouse, and dependent children has not received any income related to such rights and interests or if the Employee has assigned any ownership interest in those rights and interests to the University. In other words if you have received any payment because you own intellectual property, you must disclose it;
- e) Limited to PHS awardees: Any reimbursed or sponsored travel, but only if the travel is sponsored or reimbursed by a federal, state or local government, an institution of higher education, an academic teaching hospital, a medical center, or a research institute that is affiliated with an institution of higher education. In other words, if any other entity or organization covered your expenses for travel, you must disclose it;
- f) Limited to PHS awardees: Any income from seminars, lectures, or teaching engagements sponsored by a federal, state or local government agency, an institution of higher learning, an academic teaching hospital, a medical center, or a research institute that is affiliated with an institution of higher education. In other words, if any other entity or organization paid you to deliver a seminar, lecture or teach, you must disclose it;
- g) Limited to PHS awardees: Any income from service on advisory panels for a federal, state or local government agency, an institution of higher learning, an academic teaching hospital, a medical center, or a research institute that is affiliated with an institution of higher education. In other words, if any other type of entity or organization paid you to serve on an advisory panel, you must disclose it;

- h) Salary, royalties or other payments made to the Employee's spouse and/or dependent children, from entities that do not do business with the University;
- Salary, royalties or other payments from entities that do business with the University that, when aggregated for the Employee and the Employee's spouse and/or dependent children over the next twelve months, are not expected to exceed \$5,000.

UNDER REVIEW

The following provisions are procedures amendable by the Office of Record or the Conflict of Interest Committee, as appropriate to comply with current law, regulations, and policy. Amendments to procedures do not require University Senate approval. However, the Office of Record shall inform the Conflict of Interest Committee of changes needed or made; and the Conflict of Interest Committee shall inform the University Senate of amendments to these procedures.

PROCEDURES

1. Procedures for Voluntary Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest

This policy uses disclosure as the key mechanism to identify potential Conflicts of Interest, to evaluate them, and to manage or eliminate them. Employees are required to take the initiative to report promptly all Disclosable Interests. If changes occur in an Employee's activities, situation, or financial status relevant to the initial report, the Employee is required to inform the University of these changes. Conflicts of Interest span a wide spectrum, from those that can be easily managed to those that have such a serious impact that they cannot be permitted; therefore, existence of a Conflict of Interest, real or potential, will not necessarily preclude a particular activity.

1.1. Persons Required to Report

- 1.1.1. Before September 30 of each year, or within 30 days of the commencing of employment with the University, all Employees are required to report all Disclosable Interests.
- 1.1.2. Principal Investigators must also assure that personnel listed in a proposal or potential contract have filed appropriate documentation as described in Section 5.2 prior to submitting the proposal or potential contract to the Vice President for Research and Economic Development.

1.2. Documentation (Forms 1-3 are attached)

1.2.1. All University Employees

- 1. Annually, all Employees must file with the Executive Head of the Unit, a Financial Interests Disclosure Document (Form 1). If any Employee declares a significant financial interest on Form 1, a Description of Financial Interest Activity (Form 2) must be completed for each entity or activity and submitted to the Executive Head of the Unit. Principal Investigators submitting an external grant proposal must have on file with the Office of the Vice President for Research and Economic Development a current Form 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Executive Head of a Unit may waive the requirement to file the documents listed above for Employees who are volunteers or who work part-time. The Executive Head of the Unit will notify the Appropriate Vice President of the identity of any person for whom a waiver was granted.
- 2. Notwithstanding the above, on an annual basis, graduate students who do not submit external grant proposals as principal investigators and facilities and dining services personnel in the 6000 and 7000 bands (information concerning the broadbanding classification of personnel is available from the Office of Human Resources), excluding those in lead or supervisor positions, will be notified separately of the conflict of Interest Policy and its requirements. If any graduate student or person in the 6000 and 7000 bands believes that he or she has a

Conflict of Interest, he or she must file with the Executive Head of the Unit, a Financial Interests Disclosure Document (Form 1) and a Conflict of Commitment Document (Form 2).

3. If the Employee's financial/business interests and/or time commitments materially change during the year, Forms 1, 2, and 3 must be revised within 30 days of the change.

1.2.2. Principal Investigators

- 1. Funding proposals cannot be submitted until all Conflict of Interest issues have been resolved and documented. Therefore, it is incumbent on the investigator to have the appropriate documentation and approval(s) prior to submission of a proposal for University review.

 Limited to PHS awardees: For PHS proposals that contain subcontracts, the PI will have to submit documentation indicating whether the investigators working on the subcontract will be following the UND policy on conflict of financial interest or the investigators institution's policy. In the former case the PI will need appropriate documentation from all key personnel. In the latter case the PI will need to supply documentation signed by an authorized representative of the subcontractor's institution indicating that the institution has a PHS compatible conflict of interest policy which is followed by the institution.
- If the Employee's financial/business interests and/or time commitments materially change during the year such that it affects the design, conduct, or reporting of the research or educational activities of a proposal, Forms 1, 2, and 3 must revised within 30 days of the change.

Limited to PHS awardees: Principal Investigators must also assure that all key personnel listed in a proposal or potential contract have filed appropriate documentation as described in this Section 5.

1.3. Evaluation

- 1.3.1. The Executive Heads of Units have the responsibility to evaluate all documentation provided by Employees in the unit, and to document, and manage all Conflicts of Interests.
- 1.3.2. The Employee has the responsibility to respond to inquiries from the University in connection with any report.
- 1.3.3. The Executive Head of the Unit will review all relevant forms and complete Section III of the Disclosable Interests Document (Form 1). The review has two possible designated outcomes:
 - 1. No Conflict of Interest exists.

When the Executive Head of the Unit determines that no Conflict of Interest exists, no further review of the documentation is required. All completed and signed original documents will be forwarded to the Office of Record.

A Conflict of Interest may exist.

When the Executive Head of the Unit determines that a Conflict of Interest may exist, he/she will draft a brief summary of what led to that conclusion. The summary must include suggested terms for a memorandum of understanding for managing the conflict. All completed and signed original documents completed forms will then be forwarded to the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee for further review.

1.3.4. The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee has the responsibility to evaluate and render a decision regarding all potential Conflict of Interest cases that have been forwarded to him/her. The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee may consult outside experts before reaching a

decision. The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will review all relevant forms and complete Section III of the Disclosure Interests Document (Form 1). The evaluation has three possible designated outcomes:

No Conflict of Interest exists.

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that no Conflict of Interest exists, no further review of the documentation is required. The Appropriate Vice President will draft a memorandum outlining the rationale for the determination, a copy of which will be sent to the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit.

2. A Conflict of Interest exists, but the risk to the University can be managed.

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that a Conflict of Interest exists, but that any risk to the University can be managed, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee, in consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, will produce a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by the University and Employee that details the manner in which the Conflict of Interest will be managed.

3. A significant Conflict of Interest exists and the risk to the University cannot be managed

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that a Conflict of Interest exists and that the risk to the University cannot be managed, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee, in consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, will produce a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by the University and Employee that details the manner in which the Conflict of Interest will be eliminated.

Upon completion of the review, the signed originals of all documents will be forwarded to the Office of Record and copies will be sent to the Executive Head of the Unit and Employee. If a Memorandum of Understanding is required, after consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will draft the document and forward it to the Executive Head of the Unit and Employee for signatures. The signed original Memorandum of Understanding will be forwarded to the Office of Record and a copy will be sent to the Executive Head of the Unit and employee. If the Employee does not appeal the decision of the Appropriate Vice President, such decision will be final.

1.4. Conflicts of Interest Involving Administrators

- 1.4.1. In actual or potential Conflicts of Interest involving administrators at the level of Dean, Director, or higher, annual disclosure documentation will be delivered to the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee, who will make a recommendation consistent with this policy. Appeals will be handled as provided in Section 7 of this policy. If the administrator does not appeal the decision of the Appropriate Vice President, such decision will be final.
- 1.4.2. In actual or potential conflicts of interest involving administrators at the level of Vice President, disclosures will be reviewed by the President, who will evaluate the disclosure for possible Conflict of Interest.

Following review, the signed original will be forwarded to the Office of Record and the Administrator will be notified of the decision in writing. If a Memorandum of Understanding is required, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee (or, in cases involving Vice Presidents, the President) will draft the document and forward it to the Administrator for his/her signature. The signed original Memorandum of Understanding will be forwarded to the Office of Record and a copy sent to the Administrator.

- 2. Procedures for Discovered Potential Conflicts of Interest.
 - 2.1. Report of Potential Conflict.

Any person with information regarding a potential Conflict of Interest involving an Employee may make a Report of Potential Conflict, in writing, to the Appropriate Vice President for the Employee. A Report of Potential Conflict may also be submitted via any system operated by the University or the State of North Dakota for whistle blowers. If the person does not know the identity of the Appropriate Vice President, then the information may be delivered to any Vice President, who will determine the identity of and deliver the information to the Appropriate Vice President.

2.2. Pre-Inquiry Review by the Appropriate Vice President.

The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will review any Report of Potential Conflict to determine whether:

- 2.2.1. The potential Conflict of Interest is within the purview of this Conflict of Interest Policy;
- 2.2.2. The Employee has previously disclosed the information contained in the Report of Potential Conflict under the procedures contained in Section 5;
- 2.2.3. Other policies and procedures, such as those relevant to employment grievances, should be invoked;
- 2.2.4. The allegation is outside the purview of the University;
- 2.2.5. The allegation is clearly without substance.

If an Inquiry is determined to be unwarranted, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will prepare an internal memorandum-for-file including a statement of the allegation and the rationale for not conducting an inquiry. This memorandum will be forwarded to the Office of Record. A copy will be given to the Employee who is the subject of the Report of Potential Conflict.

If, during the Pre-Inquiry Review, the Employee makes a voluntary disclosure of the potential Conflict of Interest as provided in Section 5, the Appropriate Vice President may terminate the Pre-Inquiry Review and the potential Conflict of Interest will be assessed using the procedures in Section 5.

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that an Inquiry is warranted, the Inquiry process will be initiated. The Appropriate Vice President may consider the failure of the Employee to voluntarily disclose the potential Conflict of Interest in determining whether to assess the Potential Conflict of Interest using the process in Section 6.3.

2.3. Inquiry Process.

2.3.1. Purpose.

After review by the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee and a determination that there is a potential Conflict of Interest, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will initiate an Inquiry. The purpose of the Inquiry is to explore further the allegations and determine whether a Conflict of Interest exists and, if a Conflict of Interest does exist, to determine the best method for managing it. The Inquiry will focus on the existence of a Conflict of Interest as defined in this Conflict of Interest Policy and examine the factual materials of each case. In the course of the Inquiry, additional information may emerge that justifies broadening the scope of the Inquiry beyond the initial allegations.

2.3.2. Procedure.

The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will determine the appropriate method for conducting the Inquiry Process. This may entail the appointment of a person or committee to gather factual information. The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will notify the Employee in writing of the decision to begin the Inquiry and of the procedures that will be used to gather information

All factual findings will be evaluated by the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee. The evaluation has three possible designated outcomes:

1. No Conflict of Interest exists.

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that no Conflict of Interest exists, no further review of the documentation is required.

2. A Conflict of Interest exists, but the risk to the University can be managed.

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that a Conflict of Interest exists, but that any risk to the University can be managed, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee, in consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, will produce a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by the University and Employee that details the manner in which the Conflict of Interest will be managed.

3. A significant Conflict of Interest exists and the risk to the University cannot be managed.

If the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee determines that a Conflict of Interest exists and that the risk to the University cannot be managed, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee, in consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, will produce a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by the University and Employee that details the manner in which the Conflict of Interest will be eliminated.

Upon completion of the review, the signed originals of all documents will be forwarded to the Office of Record and copies will be sent to the Executive Head of the Unit and Employee. If a Memorandum of Understanding is required, after consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee will draft the document and forward it to the Employee for signature. The signed original Memorandum of Understanding will be forwarded to the Office of Record and a copy will be sent to the Executive Head of the Unit and Employee. If the Employee does not appeal the decision of the Appropriate Vice President, such decision will be final.

3. Appeal

3.1. Initiation of Appeal

An appeal of the decision by the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee, or by the President in the case of Conflicts of Interest involving Vice Presidents, may be initiated by the Employee.

- 3.1.1. The Employee must submit a written appeal to the Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee within 30 working days of receiving written notification of the decision. The appeal will then be forwarded to the Conflict of Interest Committee, which will commence the process under subsection 7.2 below.
- 3.1.2. In the case of an administrator at the level of Dean, Director, or higher, she/he must submit a written appeal to the President within 30 working days of receiving written notification of the decision. The appeal will then be forwarded to the Chair of the Conflict of Interest Committee, which will commence the process under subsection 7.2 below.

3.2. Process and Structure.

3.2.1. The Chair of the Conflict of Interest Committee will consult with the Chair of the University Senate to appoint a three-person Committee of Investigation, all without conflict of interest. If the Conflict of Interest involves an Employee who is a member of the faculty, at least two members of the Committee of Investigation must be tenured faculty at the rank of associate or full professor and have

appropriate expertise for evaluating the information relative to the case. If the Conflict of Interest involves an Employee who is not a member of the faculty, at least two members of the Committee of Investigation must be members of the staff or administration and have appropriate expertise for evaluating the information relative to the case. Members of the Committee of Investigation may be appointed from outside the University of North Dakota community if, in the judgment of the Conflict of Interest Committee, the circumstances justify such an appointment. Otherwise, the third member will be appointed from within the University and must meet the same requirements as those listed for the first two members. Appointment of a Committee of Investigation will be made within 20 working days, or such later time as agreed to by both the Employee and Chair of the Conflict of Interest Committee, following the receipt of notice by the Conflict of Interest Committee that the written appeal has been submitted to the Appropriate Vice President.

- 3.2.2. Before the Committee of Investigation is convened, the Chair of the Conflict of Interest Committee will notify the Employee of the procedures that will be used to examine the Conflict of Interest and direct the Employee to this Conflict of Interest Policy for procedural guidance. Further, the Employee will be informed of the proposed membership of the Committee of Investigation for the purpose of identifying, in advance, any real or potential conflicts of interest.
- 3.2.3. At its first meeting, the Committee of Investigation will elect a chairperson to handle procedural and administrative matters. All Committee of Investigation members will be voting members.
- 3.2.4. Every effort will be made to complete the Investigation phase within 120 working days; however, it is acknowledged that some cases may render this time period difficult to meet. In such cases, the Committee of Investigation must prepare a progress report for the Chair of the Conflict of Interest Committee that includes the reasons for the delay and an estimate of the additional time necessary for completion of the Investigation.

3.3. Findings.

Upon completion of the Investigation, the Committee of Investigation will submit a draft report to the Employee for comment. The Employee will be sent a copy of the draft report by certified mail, return receipt requested. The Employee will be given the opportunity to comment in writing upon the findings and recommendations of the Committee of Investigation. If the Employee chooses to comment, such comments will be forwarded to the Chair of the Committee of Investigation as soon as possible but no later than 20 working days from the date of receipt of the draft report. The Committee of Investigation will then submit the final report to the President, which details the Committee of Investigation's findings.

The final report must include:

- 3.3.1. Summary of appeal. Describe the findings of the Appropriate Vice President and decision of the Appropriate Vice President that is being appealed,
- 3.3.2. Policies and procedures. Describe the institutional policies and procedures under which the Investigation was conducted,
- 3.3.3. Research records and information. Identify and summarize the records and information reviewed, and identify any information taken into custody but not relied upon.
- 3.3.4. Statement of findings. For each separate possible Conflict of Interest identified during the Investigation, provide a finding as to whether a Conflict of Interest exists, and if so summarize the facts and the analysis which support the conclusion and consider the merits of any reasonable explanation by the Employee;
- 3.3.5. Recommendation. For each separate possible Conflict of Interest, recommend a way to manage the Conflict of Interest or, if management of the Conflict of Interest is not possible, a reasonable period of time for the Employee eliminate the cause of the Conflict of Interest.

All records of any Investigation will be maintained by the Office of Record.

The report will also be sent to the Employee and the President by the Committee of Investigation.

3.4. Final Decision to be made by the President.

The report of the Committee of Investigation will be evaluated by the President. The evaluation has three possible designated outcomes:

3.4.1. No Conflict of Interest exists.

If the President determines that no Conflict of Interest exists, no further review of the documentation is required. The President will draft a memorandum outlining the rationale for the determination, a copy of which will be sent to the Employee, the Appropriate Vice President and the Executive Head of the Unit.

3.4.2. A Conflict of Interest exists, but the risk to the University can be managed.

If the President determines that a Conflict of Interest exists, but that any risk to the University can be managed, the President or his/her designee, in consultation with the Employee and the Executive Head of the Unit, will produce a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by the University and Employee that details the manner in which the Conflict of Interest will be managed.

3.4.3. A significant Conflict of Interest exists and the risk to the University cannot be managed

If the President determines that a Conflict of Interest exists and that the risk to the University cannot be managed, the President will produce a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed by the University and Employee that details the manner in which the Conflict of Interest will be eliminated.

Upon completion of the review, the signed originals of all documents will be forwarded to the Office of Record and copies will be sent to the Executive Head of the Unit and Employee. If a Memorandum of Understanding is required (and is different from any Memorandum of Understanding produced earlier in the process), the President or his/her designee will draft the document and forward it to the Employee for signature. The signed original Memorandum of Understanding will be forwarded to the Office of Record and a copy must be sent to the Executive Head of the Unit and Employee.

4. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR FUNDING AND REGULATORY AGENCIES.

The University will comply with all federal regulations that require certifications and reporting, including that each application for funding to the PHS include specific certifications and agreements in regard to this policy and financial conflicts of interest.

- 5. MANAGEMENT, ENFORCEMENT AND EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS.
 - 5.1. Management.
 - 5.1.1. If a Memorandum of Understanding is signed by the University and the Employee, the Executive Head of the Unit will determine an appropriate method to monitor the situation to ensure compliance with the Memorandum of Understanding.
 - 5.1.2. Limited to PHS awardees: If the Conflict of Interest involves an Employee who is compensated from or has spending authority over funds derived from extramural funding, prior to expending any funds, and if required to do so by funding agency policy, the Vice President for Research and Economic Development or his/her designee will notify the funding agency of the existence of the Conflict of Interest and provide written assurance that the Conflict of Interest is being managed, reduced, or eliminated in accordance with agency requirements.

- 5.1.3. The University of North Dakota will maintain records of all financial disclosures and of all actions taken to resolve conflicts of interest for ten years after: the termination of the award, completion of the award, or the resolution of any government action involving those records.
- 5.1.4. Limited to PHS awardees: In addition to its general obligations under State open records law, the Vice-President for Research and Economic Development shall maintain and make available within a reasonable period of time not to exceed five working days to anyone who requests it, information concerning any Disclosable Interest described in subsection 5.5.1 if: a) the Disclosable Interest is still held by the Employee and b) the University has determined under this Policy that the Disclosable Interest was a Conflict of Interest, whether or not that Conflict of Interest is manageable. At a minimum, the information made available to the person who requests it will include: 1) the Employee's name; 2) the Employee's title and role within any research projects currently receiving extramural funding; 3) the name of any entity associated with the Disclosable Interest; 4) the nature of the Disclosable Interest and 5) the approximate value of the Disclosable Interest or a statement that the Disclosable Interest is not one that can be readily valued through reference to public prices or other reasonable measures of fair market value.

5.2. Enforcement

The Appropriate Vice President or his/her designee is responsible for:

- 5.2.1. ensuring that Executive Heads of all units obtain annual Conflict of Interest documentation from each Employee,
- 5.2.2. enforcing compliance with this Conflict of Interest Policy, and
- 5.2.3. providing the Purchasing Office, on a monthly basis, with lists of those Employees who, under a Memorandum of Understanding, have limits placed on their ability to direct the expenditure of University funds and those Employees who have failed to file their annual Conflict of Interest documentation.

5.3. Employment Conditions

Each Employee must comply with the terms of any Memorandum of Understanding entered into between the University and the Employee and/or by the terms of any final decision under Sections 5, 6 or 7. Any Employee who does not comply may be subject to employment conditions including, but not limited to:

- 5.3.1. Administrative supervision of funded research,
- 5.3.2. Completion of supplementary training in conflicts of interest,
- 5.3.3. Administrative supervision of the use of University facilities and properties,
- 5.3.4. Freeze or loss of research funds or accounts,
- 5.3.5. Loss of privileges in the use of University facilities and property,
- 5.3.6. Rescission of contracts with entities or Employees,
- 5.3.7. Criminal or civil legal action, and
- 5.3.8. Termination of employment.

UND Vice President for Research and Economic Development Policy Library Section 1, Policy 8, Research Conflict of Interest Policy

RESPONSIBILITIES

Individual Fill out Conflict of Interest Forms annually or as needed		
Research Development and Compliance	Collect, Advise, and Monitor Compliance	

FORMS

Conflict of Interest Form 1	Research Development and Compliance
Conflict of Interest Form 2	Research Development and Compliance
Conflict of Interest Form 3	Research Development and Compliance

REVISION RECORD

x/xx/xx - Policy Implementation	Signed by President Robert O. Kelley
---------------------------------	--------------------------------------

University of North Dakota Conflict of Interest DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS DOCUMENT

(To be filed annually by September 15th)

Name		T	itle
College/A	dm. Unit	Dept./Adm. Unit	
	SECTION I	. SIGNIFICANT FINANCIA	L INTEREST
reporting	of research supported by feder	ral agencies; do you have signi	responsible for the design, conduct, or ng authority for off-campus purchases of on purchases of over \$10,000 per year?
No If	you have answered no, please	go to Section II (Page 2).	
	you have answered yes, in you lowing six-part question.	ur association with the University	ity of North Dakota, you must answer the
Do you ma	ake or impact decisions that co	ould be influenced because you	, your spouse, and/or dependent children:
1)	.07	y-traded entity* that consists of or equity interest that exceeds a	f any combination of remuneration within value of \$5,000?
2)	Have an interest in a non-pu	ablicly traded entity* that paid in which you own any equity i	you remuneration within the previous 12 nterest?
3)	Have intellectual property is	nterests in a patent, patent app North Dakota that has generate	plication, or copyright that has not been ed any income for you?
4) [']	Have participated in any tra- government, an institution of	vel reimbursed or sponsored by f higher education, an academic iated with an institution of high	anyone other than federal, state or local c teaching hospital, a medical center, or a er education?
5) ่	Have any income from ser sponsored by someone other	than a federal, state or local going hospital, a medical center, o	lvisory panels or teaching engagements vernment agency, an institution of higher ra research institute that is affiliated with
6)	Have salary, royalties or ot	ployee and the employee's sp	at do business with the University that, ouse and/or dependent children over the
If you che	cked yes to any of the above s	six items, you must complete Fo	orm 2.
*See Conf	flict of Interest Policy-Definiti	ions	

SECTION II. NON-FINANCIAL DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS

During the current fiscal year*, did you or will you:

- y	Spend more than 20% of your total work effort on outside, compensated or voluntary, professional/commercial activities, including consulting or management of an outside business if you are a member of the faculty? If you are not a member of the faculty, did you or will you spend any work effort on outside, compensated or voluntary, professional/commercial activities, including consulting or management of an outside business during normal work hours at the University?
	Yes No Use significant University resources (including faculty, students, support staff, facilities, equipment, or confidential information) in carrying out your outside, compensated or voluntary, professional/commercial activities?
3)	Yes No Serve as principal or co-principal investigator for sponsored projects submitted and managed through other academic, federal, or commercial institutions, excluding subcontracts awarded to the University of North Dakota and/or multi-site training or research projects?
<u>-</u>	Yes No Serve as a manager of an outside business activity in your professional field?
´ . -	
,_	Be involved in any activities other than those listed that may be perceived as a conflict of interest? Yes No
	th question answered yes, please list all such arrangements and provide an attached written explanation. amounts are NOT to be disclosed.
have preport of the Un	nitting this form, I certify that I have read the Conflict of Interest Policy. I affirm that the information I rovided is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I recognize my continuing obligation to changes in my status as they occur. If I declare that I am party to a Memorandum of Understanding with niversity regarding a Conflict of Interest, I am in full compliance with that Memorandum of standing.
Signatu	are Date
*See C	conflict of Interest Policy-Definitions

SECTIO	N III. REVIEW	
I have reviewed the Disclosable Interests Document and any attachments. Check one: To the best of my knowledge, a conflict of interest situation does not exist. The document may indicate a conflict of interest.		
To the best of my knowledge, a conflict of required. (Please forward the document to RD&	interest situation does not exist and no further review is C, Stop 7134, if this box is checked)	
	est; therefore, I am referring the matter for further review to I this form to the appropriate Vice President ONLY if this	
Signature of Dean of Academic Unit or Director /Assoc. VP for Non-Academic Unit	Date	
Title	Date	
SECTION IV. REVIEW BY TH	E APPROPRIATE VICE PRESIDENT*	
I have reviewed the Disclosable Interests Document	and any attachments. Check one:	
I find that no conflict of interest exists.		
A conflict of interest exists and conditions employee and the University must be imposed.	detailed in a Memorandum of Understanding between the	
A conflict of interest exists that cannot be Understanding eliminating the conflicting interest	e managed and conditions detailed in a Memorandum of st must be imposed.	
(Please forward the document to RD&C, Stop 7134.)	
Signature of appropriate Vice President*	Date	
*See Conflict of Interest Policy-Definitions		

Page 3 of 3

(Form 1: Disclosable Interests Document)

(Revised 3/11/2014)

University of North Dakota Conflict of Interest DESCRIPTION OF FINANCIAL INTEREST ACTIVITY

(to be filed if a potential conflict involving a significant financial interest is identified on Form 1)

Name	Title
College/Adm. Unit	Dept./Adm. Unit
 Within these areas, a significant f honoraria, consulting fees stock, stock option, real es ownership you, your spouse, and/or trustee) with an entity an entity holding copyright and/or dependent children 	dependent children hold a position of management (director, officer, partner, ht, patent rights, or license rights to a product belonging to you, your spouse,
Please list below 1) name of entit 3) type of financial interest (in	cy, 2) type of entity (business, non-profit, governmental, or other), and nome, equity, or ownership) for each. Do not include dollar amounts/shares:
If necessary attach additional pag	ge
have provided is complete and a report changes in my status as	that I have read the Conflict of Interest Policy . I affirm that the information I accurate to the best of my knowledge. I recognize my continuing obligation to so they occur. If I am party to a Memorandum of Understanding with the finterest, I am in full compliance with that Memorandum of Understanding.
Signature	Date

University of North Dakota Conflict of Interest CERTIFICATION OF FILING OF DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

(to be filed by all principal investigators)

Name		Title
College/Adm. Uni	it Dept./Ad	dm. Unit
of my spouse and/educational, or ser	or dependent children) that would re-	, I filed Conflict of Interest forms with on regarding any significant financial interests (and those easonably appear to be in conflict with my research, program funding is sought, and in entities whose sted by the research.
Further, I agree:		
• To update this disclosure during the period of any award as new reportable significant financial interest are obtained.		
• To cooperate in the development of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that constitutes a conflict of interest "resolution plan" if a conflict of interest is found to exist.		
	with any conditions or restrictions in the work of interest or forfeit any relevant awar	imposed by the University to manage, reduce, or eliminaterd.
• To have a project fur		required, prior to making any expenditures of sponsored
ENDORSEMEN	TS:	
Signature		Date
will be possible to	he Conflict of Interest forms and belo manage that conflict of interest. If a ward will be established prior to expense	lieve that, if it is found that a conflict of interest exists, in needed, an MOU to manage the conflict of interest during enditure of award funds.
Signature of Exec	cutive Head of the Unit*	Date
*See Conflict of I	nterest Policy-Definitions	